IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

LEROY POOLER,)
Appellant,))
V.)
STATE OF FLORIDA,)
Appellee.)))

CASE NO. SC 05-2191 L.T. No. 95-1117 CF A02

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

On Appeal from the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida

> BRADLEY M. COLLINS, P.A. 600 South Andrews Avenue Suite 500 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 Telephone (954) 764-7667 Facsimile (954) 764-5040

BY: Matthew D. Bavaro, Esquire F.B.N. 178521

Bradley M. Collins, Esquire F.B.N. 369438

Heath v. Jones, 941 F.2d 1126 (11 th Cir. 1991).73Hitchcock v. Dugger, 481 U.S. 393 (1987).58,59,61Hough v. State, 448 So.2d 628 (Fla. 5 th DCA 1984).84Huff v. State, 622 So.2d 982 (Fla. 1983).2Jackson v. Dugger, 837 F.2d 1469 (11 th Cir. 1988).60,90Jeffries v. Blodgett, 5 F.3d 1180, 1190 (9 th Cir. 1993).76,77,79Johnson v. Louisiana, 406 U.S. 356 (1972).93Johnson v. Singletary, 612 So. 2d 575 (Fla. 1993).87Jones v. State, 591 So.2d 911 (Fla. 1956).94Kenley v. Armontrout, 937 F.2d 1298 (8 th Cir. 1991).44Kimbrough v. State, 864 So.2d 965 (2004).1Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365 (1986).44King v. Strickland, 748 F.2d 1462, 1464 (11 th Cir. 1984).43Kubat v. Thieret, 867 F. 2d 351, 369 (7 th Cir. 1989).48Landmark Communications, Inc. v. Virginia, 435 U.S. 82978(1978).7883Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9 th Cir. 1974).65,66,67Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9 th Cir. 1974).65,66,67Mason v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987).37Mattox v. United States, 146 U.S. 140, 149 (1892).76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11 th Cir. 1984).58,72McCampbell v. State, 516 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982).55McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987).58Mauldin v. Wainwright, 486 U.S. 357 (1988).61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975).57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974).84Mills v.	Harrison v. Jones, 880 F.2d 1277 (11 th Cir. 1989)	61
Hitchcock v. Dugger, 481 U.S. 393 (1987)		
Hough v. State, 448 So.2d 628 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984)House v. Balkcom, 725 F.2d 608, 618 (11th Cir.)		58.59.61
House v. Balkcom, 725 F.2d 608, 618 (11 th Cir.)84Huff v. State, 622 So.2d 982 (Fla. 1983)2Jackson v. Dugger, 837 F.2d 1469 (11 th Cir. 1988)60,90Jeffries v. Blodgett, 5 F.3d 1180, 1190 (9 th Cir. 1993)76,77,79Johnson v. Louisiana, 406 U.S. 356 (1972)93Johnson v. Singletary, 612 So. 2d 575 (Fla. 1993)87Jones v. State, 591 So.2d 911 (Fla. 1991)87Jones v. State, 92 so.2d 261 (Fla. 1995)94Kenley v. Armontrout, 937 F.2d 1298 (8 th Cir. 1991)44Kimbrough v. State, 886 So.2d 965 (2004)1Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365 (1986)44King v. Strickland, 748 F.2d 1462, 1464 (11 th Cir. 1984)43Kubat v. Thieret, 867 F. 2d 351, 369 (7 th Cir. 1989)48Landmark Communications, Inc. v. Virginia, 435 U.S. 829(1978)(1978)78Lee v. United States, 939 F. 2d 503 (7 th Cir. 1987)83Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9 th Cir. 1974)65,66,67Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9 th Cir. 1974)65,66,67Mason v. State, 489 So.2d 734 (Fla. 1986)84Masterson v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987)76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11 th Cir. 1984)58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982)55McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)58McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)58McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974)84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988)		
Huff v. State, 622 So.2d 982 (Fla. 1983).2Jackson v. Dugger, 837 F.2d 1469 (11 th Cir. 1988).60,90Jeffries v. Blodgett, 5 F.3d 1180, 1190 (9 th Cir. 1993).76,77,79Johnson v. Louisiana, 406 U.S. 356 (1972).93Johnson v. Singletary, 612 So. 2d 575 (Fla. 1993).87Jones v. State, 591 So.2d 911 (Fla. 1991).87Jones v. State, 92 so.2d 261 (Fla. 1956).94Kenley v. Armontrout, 937 F.2d 1298 (8 th Cir. 1991).44Kimbrough v. State, 886 So.2d 965 (2004).1Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365 (1986).44King v. Strickland, 748 F.2d 1462, 1464 (11 th Cir. 1984).43Kubat v. Thieret, 867 F. 2d 351, 369 (7 th Cir. 1989).48Landmark Communications, Inc. v. Virginia, 435 U.S. 82978(1978).78Lee v. United States, 939 F. 2d 503 (7 th Cir. 1991)48Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S, 586 (1978).83Mason v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987).37Mattox v. United States, 146 U.S. 140, 149 (1892).76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11 th Cir. 1984).55,86,67Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11 th Cir. 1984).58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982).58McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990).59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974).84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988).61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975).57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990).57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U		84
Jackson v. Dugger, 837 F.2d 1469 (11 th Cir. 1988)60,90Jeffries v. Blodgett, 5 F.3d 1180, 1190 (9 th Cir. 1993)76,77,79Johnson v. Louisiana, 406 U.S. 356 (1972)		-
Jeffries v. Blodgett, 5 F.3d 1180, 1190 (9 th Cir. 1993)76,77,79Johnson v. Louisiana, 406 U.S. 356 (1972)		
Johnson v. Louisiana, 406 U.S. 356 (1972)		/
Johnson v. Singletary, 612 So. 2d 575 (Fla. 1993).87Jones v. State, 591 So.2d 911 (Fla. 1991).87Jones v. State, 92 so.2d 261 (Fla. 1956).94Kenley v. Armontrout, 937 F.2d 1298 (8 th Cir. 1991).44Kimbrough v. State, 886 So.2d 965 (2004).1Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365 (1986).44King v. Strickland, 748 F.2d 1462, 1464 (11 th Cir. 1984).43Kubat v. Thieret, 867 F. 2d 351, 369 (7 th Cir. 1989).48Landmark Communications, Inc. v. Virginia, 435 U.S. 82978(1978).78Lee v. United States, 939 F. 2d 503 (7 th Cir. 1991)48Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S, 586 (1978).83Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9 th Cir. 1974).65,66,67Mason v. State, 489 So.2d 734 (Fla. 1986).84Masterson v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987).37Mattox v. United States, 146 U.S. 140, 149 (1892).76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11 th Cir. 1984).55,85Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1978).58,72McCampbell v. State, 411 So.2d 172, 1075 (Fla. 1982).55McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990).59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974).84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988).61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975).57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990).57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958).78		
Jones v. State, 591 So.2d 911 (Fla. 1991).87Jones v. State, 92 so.2d 261 (Fla. 1956).94Kenley v. Armontrout, 937 F.2d 1298 (8 th Cir. 1991).44Kimbrough v. State, 886 So.2d 965 (2004).1Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365 (1986).44King v. Strickland, 748 F.2d 1462, 1464 (11 th Cir. 1984).43Kubat v. Thieret, 867 F. 2d 351, 369 (7 th Cir. 1989).48Landmark Communications, Inc. v. Virginia, 435 U.S. 82978(1978).78Lee v. United States, 939 F. 2d 503 (7 th Cir. 1991)48Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S, 586 (1978).48,49,55,59,68Magill v. Dugger, 824 F.2s 879 (11 th Cir. 1987).83Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9 th Cir. 1974).65,66,67Mason v. State, 489 So.2d 734 (Fla. 1986).84Masterson v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987).37Mattox v. United States, 146 U.S. 140, 149 (1892).76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11 th Cir. 1984).65,85Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988).58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982).55McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990).59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974).84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988).61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975).57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990).57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958).78		
Jones v. State, 92 so.2d 261 (Fla. 1956)		
Kenley v. Armontrout, 937 F.2d 1298 (8 th Cir. 1991)44Kimbrough v. State, 886 So.2d 965 (2004)1Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365 (1986)44King v. Strickland, 748 F.2d 1462, 1464 (11 th Cir. 1984)43Kubat v. Thieret, 867 F. 2d 351, 369 (7 th Cir. 1989)48Landmark Communications, Inc. v. Virginia, 435 U.S. 8291(1978)		
Kimbrough v. State, 886 So.2d 965 (2004)1Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365 (1986)44King v. Strickland, 748 F.2d 1462, 1464 (11 th Cir. 1984)43Kubat v. Thieret, 867 F. 2d 351, 369 (7 th Cir. 1989)48Landmark Communications, Inc. v. Virginia, 435 U.S. 82978(1978)	1000000000000000000000000000000000000	-
Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365 (1986)	Kimbrough v. State 886 So $2d$ 965 (2004)	
King v. Strickland, 748 F.2d 1462, 1464 (11th Cir. 1984)43Kubat v. Thieret, 867 F. 2d 351, 369 (7th Cir. 1989)48Landmark Communications, Inc. v. Virginia, 435 U.S. 82978(1978)78Lee v. United States, 939 F. 2d 503 (7th Cir. 1991)48Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S, 586 (1978)48,49,55,59,68Magill v. Dugger, 824 F.2s 879 (11th Cir. 1987)83Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9th Cir. 1974)65,66,67Mason v. State, 489 So.2d_734 (Fla. 1986)84Masterson v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987)76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11th Cir. 1984)65,85Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988)58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982)55McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)59McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990)59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8th Cir. 1974)84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988)61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975)57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5th Cir. 1990)57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958)78	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-
Kubat v. Thieret, 867 F. 2d 351, 369 (7th Cir. 1989)		
Landmark Communications, Inc. v. Virginia, 435 U.S. 82978(1978)		-
(1978)78Lee v. United States, 939 F. 2d 503 (7th Cir. 1991)48Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S, 586 (1978)48,49,55,59,68Magill v. Dugger, 824 F.2s 879 (11th Cir. 1987)83Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9th Cir. 1974)65,66,67Mason v. State, 489 So.2d 734 (Fla. 1986)84Masterson v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987)37Mattox v. United States, 146 U.S. 140, 149 (1892)76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11th Cir. 1984)65,85Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988)		40
Lee v. United States, 939 F. 2d 503 (7th Cir. 1991)48Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S, 586 (1978)	•	70
Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S, 586 (1978).48,49,55,59,68Magill v. Dugger, 824 F.2s 879 (11 th Cir. 1987).83Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9 th Cir. 1974).65,66,67Mason v. State, 489 So.2d_734 (Fla. 1986).84Masterson v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987).37Mattox v. United States, 146 U.S. 140, 149 (1892).76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11 th Cir. 1984).65,85Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988).58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982).55McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987).58McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990).59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974).84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988).61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975).57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990).57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958).78		
Magill v. Dugger, 824 F.2s 879 (11th Cir. 1987)		-
Mason v. Arizona, 504 F.2d 1345(9th Cir. 1974)65,66,67Mason v. State, 489 So.2d_734 (Fla. 1986)84Masterson v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987)37Mattox v. United States, 146 U.S. 140, 149 (1892)76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11th Cir. 1984)65,85Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988)58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982)55McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)		
Mason v. State, 489 So.2d_734 (Fla. 1986)84Masterson v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987)37Mattox v. United States, 146 U.S. 140, 149 (1892)76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11 th Cir. 1984)65,85Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988)58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982)55McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)58McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990)59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974)84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988)61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975)57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990)57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958)78		
Masterson v. State, 516 So.2d 256 (Fla. 1987)		
Mattox v. United States, 146 U.S. 140, 149 (1892)76Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11 th Cir. 1984)65,85Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988)58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982)55McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)58McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990)59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974)84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988)61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975)57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990)57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958)78		-
Mauldin v. Wainwright, 723 F.2d 799 (11^{th} Cir. 1984)65,85Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988)58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982)55McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)58McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990)59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8^{th} Cir. 1974)84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988)61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975)57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5^{th} Cir. 1990)57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958)78		
Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. 356 (1988)58,72McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982)55McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)58McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990)59McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974)84Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988)61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975)57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990)57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958)78		
McCampbell v. State, 421 So.2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982) 55 McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987) 58 McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990) 59 McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974) 84 Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988) 61 Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975)	-	
McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 306 (1987)		
McKoy v. North Carolina, 110 S. Ct. 1227, 1239 (1990) 59 McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974) 84 Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988) 61 Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975) 57,60,89 Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990) 57,61,90 NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958) 78	-	
McQueen v. Swenson, 498 F.2d 207, 217 (8 th Cir. 1974) 84 Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988) 61 Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975) 57,60,89 Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990) 57,61,90 NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958) 78		
Mills v. Maryland, 486 U.S. 367 (1988)61Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975)57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990)57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958)78		
Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U.S. 684 (1975)57,60,89Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5th Cir. 1990)57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958)78	-	84
Murphy v. Puckett, 893 F.2d 94 (5th Cir. 1990)57,61,90NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958)78		61
NAACP v. Alabama, 357 U.S. 449 (1958) 78		57,60,89
	<u>Murphy v. Puckett</u> , 893 F.2d 94 (5 th Cir. 1990)	57,61,90
	<u>NAACP v. Alabama</u> , 357 U.S. 449 (1958)	78
	<u>NAACP v. Button</u> , 371 U.S. 415 (1963)	78
<u>Nealy v. Cabana</u> , 764 F.2d 1173 (5 th Cir. 1985) 44	<u>Nealy v. Cabana</u> , 764 F.2d 1173 (5 th Cir. 1985)	44
Norris v. State, 429 So.2d 688 (Fla. 1983) 37		37
<u>O'Callaghan v. State</u> , 461 So.2d 1354 (Fla. 1984)	<u>O'Callaghan v. State</u> , 461 So.2d 1354 (Fla. 1984)	65

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