IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: SC05-2191

LEROY POOLER,

Appellant,

VS.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, (Criminal Division)

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

CHARLES J. CRIST, JR. Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

Leslie T. Campbell
Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar No.: 0066631
1515 N. Flagler Drive #900
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
Telephone: (561) 837-5000
Facsimile: (561) 837-5108

Counsel for Appellee

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

long it took the victim to die after she was shot is irrelevant to the HAC determination. This Court should affirm the denial of postconviction relief.

ISSUE XI

THE SUMMARY DENIAL OF POOLER'S CLAIM OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE ARISING FROM THE INTRODUCTION OF ALLEGEDLY GRUESOME PHOTOGRAPHS WAS PROPER (restated)

Here, Pooler maintains it was error to deny him an evidentiary hearing on his claim that it was error to have admitted allegedly gruesome photographs at this trial. In the header to the issue, Pooler notes that this is a claim of ineffectiveness of counsel, however, he does not explain how counsel was deficient or the alleged prejudice under Strickland. Instead, Pooler points to State v. DiGuilio, 491 So.2d 1129 (Fla. 1986) to support his argument that "[t]he trial court's error in admitting these photographs cannot be considered harmless beyond a reasonable doubt." (IB 86-87) As the trial

Maxwell v. Wainwright, 490 So. 2d 927, 932 (Fla.), cert. denied, 479 U.S. 972 (1986). See Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S.Ct. 2052 (announcing that "there is no reason for a court deciding an ineffective assistance claim to ... address both components of the inquiry if the defendant makes an insufficient showing on Further, as the issue of the sufficiency of the evidence supporting HAC was litigated previously, Pooler may not now attempt to recast the challenge to the HAC finding under the guise of a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. Freeman v. State, 761 So. 2d 1055, 1067 (Fla. 2000) (holding that claims that could have been raised on direct appeal cannot relitigated under the quise of ineffective assistance of counsel)

court found in denying relief, this matter is procedurally barred as it is a claim of trial court error which could have been raised on direct appeal, legally insufficient for making the ineffectiveness argument in a single sentence without identifying either <u>Strickland</u> prong, and meritless given that counsel did object to the admission of the photographs. (PC.11 1999-2000).³⁷

The propriety of the admission of autopsy and crime scene photographs is an issue that could have been raised on direct appeal. Hence, Pooler is procedurally barred from presenting it on collateral review. See Arbelaez, 775 So.2d at 919 (finding challenge to admission of gruesome photographs procedurally barred); Muhammad, 603 So.2d at 489 (holding "[i]ssues which either were or could have been litigated at trial and upon direct appeal are not cognizable through collateral attack").

Furthermore, he may not use a single-sentence claim of ineffective assistance of counsel (located in the issue header) 38

³⁷ A court's summary denial of a postconviction motion will be affirmed where the law and competent, substantial evidence support its findings. <u>Diaz v. Dugger</u>, 719 So.2d 865, 868 (Fla. 1998).

Moreover, to present the ineffectiveness claim in the header without more elucidation should render the matter waived. See <u>Duest v. Dugger</u>, 555 So.2d 849, 852 (Fla. 1990) (opining "purpose of an appellate brief is to present arguments in support of the points on appeal" - notation to issues without elucidation is insufficient and issue will be deemed waived); Cooper v. State, 856 So.2d 969, 977 n.7 (Fla. 2003); Roberts v.

to overcome the procedural bar. <u>See Asay</u>, 769 So.2d at 989 (finding "one sentence" conclusory allegation that counsel was ineffective is an improper pleading and attempt to relitigate procedurally barred claims); <u>Freeman v. State</u>, 761 So. 2d 1055, 1061 (Fla. 2000) (holding claims that could have been raised on direct appeal cannot be relitigated under guise of ineffective assistance); <u>Rivera</u>, 717 So.2d at 480 n.2 (same) <u>Cherry</u>, 659 So.2d at 1072 (same).

However, if the merits of the ineffectiveness claim are reached, the summary denial was proper based upon the record evidence. Although unsuccessful, defense counsel challenged the admission of the photographs by written motion and when the State offered them into evidence (R.3 407-09; R.15 844; R.16 934-35). Bush, 505 So.2d at 411 (finding counsel's lack of success on actions following sound strategies "augurs no ineffectiveness of counsel"). After hearing argument of counsel, and reviewing the photographs, the court admitted the photographs concluding each appeared to depict a different wound and none appeared particularly gory (R.16 934-35). Because counsel raised a timely, albeit unsuccessful objection, he may not be deemed ineffective under Strickland. This Court should

<u>State</u>, 568 So.2d 1255 (Fla. 1990). A single sentence allegation of ineffective assistance, without more, does not present a fully briefed appellate argument.

affirm.

ISSUE XII

POOLER IS NOT "INNOCENT OF THE DEATH PENALTY" AND HIS CLAIM AND REQUEST FOR AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING WERE DENIED PROPERLY (restated)

In this issue, Pooler asserts he is innocent of the death penalty, that his sentence is not proportionate given the new mitigation "discussed" elsewhere, that the trial court erred in not granting a hearing, and "[t]o the extent that trial counsel failed to adequately raise this issue" Pooler was denied effective counsel. (IB 88). The trial court denied relief summarily finding that Pooler had failed to show that none of the aggravators applied to him and that proportionality review was the duty of this Court on direct appeal and such could not be raised in the postconviction litigation in addition to Pooler's pleading deficiencies.³⁹ The law and competent, substantial evidence support the court's denial of relief.

Below, the court found and reasoned:

Actual innocence of the death penalty must focus upon the applicability of all the aggravation circumstances in defendant's case, and not on additional mitigation he may have to offer. Sawyer v. Whitley, 505 U.S. 333, 345-46 (1992).

. . .

³⁹ A court's summary denial of a postconviction motion will be affirmed where the law and competent, substantial evidence support its findings. <u>Diaz v. Dugger</u>, 719 So.2d 865, 868 (Fla. 1998).

The record in the instant case revealed that the defendant failed to demonstrate that none of the aggravators apply. What's more, on direct appeal, the Florida Supreme Court affirmed the aggravation found. Pooler, 704 So.2d 1378-79, 1381 (affirming HAC and prior violent felony aggravators and determining sentence proportional based in part on aggravation found in case). Because the defendant cannot overcome the Florida Supreme Court's ruling, this issue is without merit as a matter of law. See Elledge v. State, 911 So.2d 57 (Fla. 2005) (finding "Elledge's contention that he is innocent of the death penalty was decided adversely to Elledge on direct appeal and is not cognizable in the postconviction proceeding"); 883 Sochor V . State, So2d 766, 788 2004)(rejecting claim of "innocent of the death penalty" because the Court found on direct appeal "that the evidence supported the existence of three aggravating circumstances").

Similarly, defendant's claim that his death sentence was disproportionate (S-Ex. 1 - Amended Motion at 57) must also be denied because it was resolved adversely to his position here by the Florida Supreme Court. *Pooler*, 704 So.2d at 1381. Consequently, it cannot be raised in a postconviction proceeding.

Even if the aforesaid claims were cognizable in a postconviction setting, defendant's claim is insufficient because he does not explain how or why the aggravators are constitutionally infirm. He does not identify the "non-record" facts the trial court supposedly relied upon in finding that the heinous, atrocious and cruel aggravating circumstances were proven....

(PC.11 2001-02).

Below, Pooler had not argued that the felony murder aggravator did not apply to him. He again omits that argument here, hence the claim is legally insufficient because he has not shown that none of the aggravators apply. Likewise, he did not

identify what non-record evidence was used to support the HAC aggravaor, thus, again making the claim legally insufficient. Further, to the extent that this issue is one of trial court error, it is procedurally barred. See State v. Coney, 845 So. 2d 120, 137 (Fla. 2003) (rejecting as procedurally barred claim of "innocent of the death penalty" as it was in part asserting trial court error). Moreover, as pointed out by the trial court, this Court affirmed the HAC and prior violent felony aggravators, as well as proportionality on direct appeal. Pooler, 704 So.2d 1378-79, 1381. Furthermore, his single sentence reference to counsel's ineffective assistance is insufficiently pled. See Asay, 769 So.2d at 989 (finding "one sentence" conclusory allegation that counsel was ineffective is an improper pleading and attempt to relitigate procedurally barred claims). The summary denial was appropriate in this case and should be affirmed.

ISSUE XIII

THE SUMMARY DENIAL OF POOLER'S CHALLENGE TO FLORIDA'S DEATH PENALTY STATUTE AS UNCONSTITUTIONAL WAS CORRECT (restated)

Pooler asserts that he should have been granted an evidentiary hearing on his claim that Florida's capital sentencing is unconstitutional under the Eighth Amendments to the United States Constitution because it: (1) does not prevent arbitrary imposition of the death penalty; (2) does not "provide"

any standard of proof for determining that aggravating circumstances 'outweigh' the mitigating factors"; (3) does not "define 'sufficient aggravating circumstances'"; (4) does not "define for the consideration each of the aggravating circumstances listed in the statute"; (5) does not "have the independent reweighing of aggravating and mitigating circumstances; (6) allows for the application of an aggravator in a vague and inconsistent manner; and (7) creates a presumption of death upon a single aggravating circumstance. According to Pooler, "[t]o the extent trial counsel failed to properly raise this issue, defense counsel rendered prejudicially deficient assistance." (IB 89-90).40

The trial court denied relief finding:

- (1) The defendant challenged the constitutionality of §921.141 at trial and on direct appeal (A-Ex.5 ROA-R 96-227, 250-77, 284-98; ROA-T 171-97, 216-23). Pooler, 704 So.2d at 1380-81. The instant challenge is one which could have been raised on direct appeal and, to the extent that he failed to address any issues at that time, he is procedurally barred from doing so in a postconviction setting. Muhammad, 603 So.2d at 489.
- (2) The Florida Supreme Court has affirmed the constitutionality of Florida's death penalty statute on numerous occasions. See Hunter v. State, 660 So.2d 244, 252-53 (Fla. 1995)....

⁴⁰ A court's summary denial of a postconviction motion will be affirmed where the law and competent, substantial evidence support its findings. <u>Diaz v. Dugger</u>, 719 So.2d 865, 868 (Fla. 1998).

(citations omitted).

(3) The Florida Supreme Court has recognized the death penalty is constitutional and the determination to have a death penalty is a legislative decision. Booker v. State, 514 So.2d 1079, 1081 (Fla. 1987).... (citation omitted)

(PC.11 2003-04).

Pooler has offered nothing to undermine the court's conclusions which were based on well settled law. This claim is legally insufficient and procedurally barred with respect to the single sentence allegation of ineffectiveness of counsel. See Asay, 769 So.2d at 989 (finding "one sentence" conclusory allegation that counsel was ineffective is an improper pleading and attempt to relitigate procedurally barred claims). matter is procedurally barred as it could have and was raised on direct appeal. Pooler, 704 So.2d at 1380-81. See Muhammad, 603 So.2d at 489 (noting "[i]ssues which either were or could have been litigated at trial and upon direct appeal are not cognizable through collateral attack."); Medina v. State, 573 2d 293 (Fla. 1990) (opining that "[a]llegations of ineffective assistance cannot be used to circumvent the rule that postconviction proceedings cannot serve as a second appeal"). Moreover, Florida's death penalty statute has been found constitutional consistently and Pooler has offered nothing to contradict those rulings. Hunter v. State, 660 So.2d 244, 252-53 (Fla. 1995) (upholding Florida's death penalty statute

against constitutional challenges). The summary denial of relief should be affirmed.

ISSUE XIV

POOLER'S CLAIM THAT RING V. ARIZONA RENDERS FLORIDA CAPITAL SENTENCING UNCONSTITUTIONAL IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED AND MERITLESS (restated)

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